Council

AGENDA

Kent County Council

REGULATION COMMITTEE MEMBER PANEL

Friday, 7th August, 2009, at 12.00 pm Ask for: Andrew Tait
Medway Room, Sessions House, County Telephone 01622 694342
Hall, Maidstone

Tea/Coffee will be available 15 minutes before the meeting

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS
(During these items the meeting is likely to be open to the public)

1. Membership

Conservative: Mr M J Harrison (Chairman), Mr A D Crowther (Vice-Chairman), Mr
S Manion, Mr R A Pascoe.

Liberal Democrat: Mr | S Chittenden

2. Declarations of Interest for items on the agenda

3. Application to register land at Alamein Gardens, Stone as a new Village Green
(Pages 1 - 22)

4. Application to register land at Beecholme Drive, Ashford as a new Village Green.
(Pages 23 - 46)

5. Other items which the Chairman decides are Urgent

EXEMPT ITEMS

(At the time of preparing the agenda there were no exempt items. During any such items
which may arise the meeting is likely NOT to be open to the public)

Peter Sass
Head of Democratic Services and Local Leadership
(01622) 694002

Thursday, 30 July 2009



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 3

Application to register land at Alamein Gardens, Stone
(Nr. Dartford) as a new Village Green

A report by the Director of Environment and Waste to Kent County Council’s
Regulation Committee Member Panel on Friday 7" August 2009.

Recommendation: | recommend that the County Council informs the applicant
that the application to register the land at Alamein Gardens, Stone has been
accepted (with the exception of the section of the land owned by Dartford
Borough Council), and that the part of the land subject to the application that is
under the ownership of Stone Parish Council be formally registered as a
Village Green.

Local Members: Mrs. P. Cole Unrestricted item

Introduction

1. The County Council has received an application to register land at Alamein
Gardens at Stone as a new Village Green from the Stone Parish Council (“the
applicant’). The application, dated 20" May 2008, was allocated the application
number VGAG00. A plan of the site is shown at Appendix A to this report and a
copy of the application form is attached at Appendix B.

Procedure

2. Traditionally, town and village greens have derived from customary law and until
recently it was only possible to register land as a new village green where certain
qualifying criteria were met: i.e. where it could be shown that the land in question
had been used ‘as of right’ for recreational purposes by the local residents for a
period of at least 20 years.

3. However, a new provision has been introduced by the Commons Act 2006 which
enables the owner of any land to apply to voluntarily register the land as a new
Village Green without having to meet the qualifying criteria. Section 15 states:

“(8) The owner of any land may apply to the Commons Registration Authority
to register the land as a town or village green.

(9) An application under subsection (8) may only be made with the consent of
any relevant leaseholder of, and the proprietor of any relevant charge over,
the land.”

4. Land which is voluntarily registered as a Village Green under section 15(8) of the
Commons Act 2006 enjoys the same level of statutory protection as that of all
other registered greens and local people will have a guaranteed right to use the
land for informal recreational purposes in perpetuity. This means that once the
land is registered it cannot be removed from the formal Register of Town or
Village Greens (other than by statutory process) and must be kept free of
development or other encroachments.

Page 1



5. As a standard procedure set out in the Commons Registration (England

Regulations 2008, the County Council must also publicise the application in a
newspaper circulating in the local area and put a copy of the Notice on its own
website. The publicity must state a period of at least six weeks during which
objections and representations can be made. In addition, the County Council is
required to notify all local Councils of the application.

In determining the application, the County Council must consider very carefully
the relevant legal tests. In the present case, it must be satisfied that the applicant
is the owner of the land and that any necessary consents have been obtained
(e.g. from a tenant or the owner of a relevant charge). Provided that these tests
are met, then the County Council is under a duty to grant the application and
register the land as a Village Green.

The Case

Description of the land

7.

The area of land subject to this application (“the application site”) consists of an
area of landscaped open space of approximately 0.3 acres (0.14 ha) in size
situated adjacent to London Road and Alamein Gardens in the village of Stone,
near Dartford. The application site is bounded on three sides by a metal fence
and on the fourth side by a metalled pathway fronting property numbers 129 to
139 Alamein Gardens. It consists of an area of grass surrounded by flowerbeds
and shrubs, and it is equipped with several benches and litter bins and a notice
board. Photographs of the site are attached at Appendix C.

Notice of Application

8.

As required by the regulations, Notice of the application was published in the
Dartford Messenger on Friday 13™ February 2009 and placed on the County
Council’'s website. In addition, copies of the notice were displayed on the
application site itself and served on Dartford Borough Council. The local County
Member was also informed of the application.

In response to the Notice of Application, six letters of support were received from
local residents. These letters stated that the land was popular with local residents
as many live in flats with no garden and this was the only area of enclosed land
where young children could play safely. Since the land was purchased by the
Parish Council it has been used as a Community Garden, maintained by the local
residents with assistance from the parish work force. The land has also been
used for Community events in the past.

10.The local County Member, Mrs. C. Angell, has also written in support of the

application. She added the land was an important green space for the local
community in an urban area and is used by a wide age range, thus assisting in
community cohesion.

Page 2



Ownership of the land

11.A Land Registry search has been undertaken to confirm the ownership of the
application site. The search revealed that although the significant majority of the
application site is owned by Stone Parish Council, a small section is under the
ownership of Dartford Borough Council.

12.In addition, and in response to the Notice of Application, the Borough Council
wrote to confirm that it owned a small section of the land subject to the application
and advised that this section ought to be excluded from the application. A plan
showing the land ownership of the application site is attached at Appendix D. A
copy of the Register of Title for the section owned by Stone Parish Council is
attached at Appendix E.

13.The fact that part of the application site is not under the Parish Council’s
ownership is not detrimental to the application itself. In the Oxfordshire’ case,
Lord Hoffman endorsed the County of Appeal’s suggestion that the Registration
Authority is entitled to amend an application and register a smaller area than that
applied for.

The ‘locality’

14.DEFRA’s view is that once land is registered as a Village Green, only the
residents of the locality have the legal right to use the land for the purposes of
lawful sports and pastimes. It is therefore necessary to identify the locality in
which the users of the land reside. At Part 6 of the application, the locality is
defined as ‘Stone parish’.

15.A locality for these purposes normally consists of a recognised administrative
area (e.g. civil parish or electoral ward) or a cohesive entity (such as a village or
housing estate). Since the application has been made by Stone Parish Council, it
seems appropriate that the locality should therefore be the parish of Stone so that
all the residents of the village have the legal right to use the land.

Conclusion

16.As stated at paragraph 3 above, the relevant criteria for the voluntary registration
of land as a new Village Green under section 15(8) of the Commons Act 2006
requires only that the County Council is satisfied that the land is owned by the
applicant. There is no need for the applicant to demonstrate use of the land ‘as of
right’ for the purposes of lawful sports and pastimes over a particular period.

17.1 have concluded that all the necessary criteria concerning the voluntary
registration of the land as a Village Green have been met in relation to the greater
part of the application site that is owned by Stone Parish Council.

' Oxfordshire County Council v Oxford City Council [2006] UKHL 25 at paragraph 62

Page 3



18.However, if the County Council decides to register the land as a Village Green,
the section of the application site that is owned by Dartford Borough Council
should be excluded from the registration.

Recommendations

19.1 recommend that the County Council informs the applicant that the application to
register the land at Alamein Gardens, Stone has been accepted (with the
exception of the part of the land owned by Dartford Borough Council), and that
the part of the land subject to the application that is under the ownership of Stone
Parish Council be formally registered as a Village Green.

Accountable Officer:

Dr. Linda Davies — Tel: 01622 221500 or Email: linda.davies@kent.gov.uk

Case Officer:

Miss. Melanie McNeir — Tel: 01622 221628 or Email: melanie.mcneir@kent.gov.uk

The main file is available for viewing on request at the Environment and Waste
Division, Environment and Regeneration Directorate, Invicta House, County Hall,
Maidstone. Please contact the case officer for further details.

Background documents

APPENDIX A — Plan showing application site

APPENDIX B — Copy of application form

APPENDIX C — Photographs of the application site

APPENDIX D - Plan showing land ownership

APPENDIX E - Official copy of register of title from Land Registry

Page 4




556500

556600

APPENDIX A:
Plan showing application site

—_—

D!
ALamEy GP®
—_— N///’

—

/E“

[

]

556500

556600

556700

Scale 1:1250

Land subject to Village Green
application at Alamein Gardens
(off London Road) at Stone

Council




APPENDIX B:

Commons Act 2006: Section 15

Application form

Application for the registration of land as a Town or
Village Green

Official stamp of registration authority
indicating valid date of receipt:

Application number: | © ((

Register unit No(s):

VG number allocated at registration:

(CRA to complete only if application is successful)

Applicants are advised to read the ‘Guidance Notes for the completion of an Application for the Registration of
land as a Town or Village Green’ and to note the following:

e All applicants should complete questions 1-6 and 10-11.

e Applicants applying for registration under section 15(1) of the 2006 Act should, in addition, complete questions 7-8.

Section 15(1) enables any person to apply to register land as a green where the criteria for registration in section

15(2), (3) or (4) apply.

e Applicants applying for voluntary registration under section 15(8) should, in addition, complete question 9.

Note 1
Insert name of
registration
authority.

1. Registration Authority

To the

Page 6




Note 2

If there is more than
one applicant, list all
names. Please use a
separate sheet if
necessary. State the
full title of the
organisation if a body
corporate or
unincorporate.

If question 3 is not
completed all
correspondence and
notices will be sent to
the first named
applicant.

Note 3

This question should
be completed if a
solicitor is instructed
for the purposes of the
application. If so all
correspondence and
notices will be sent to
the person or firm
named here.

2. Name and address of the applicant

Name: | JENNiE THOMAS

Full postal address:

STONE PARISH CouncitL

N . N 7 7 Y W
LoNDON Ro A,

Q i 7 . o
STonv ik K EeENT

7

"o . ~ o~ PP ~ o~ N0 —i Y AL (0 g 1§ fr
CounNcit OFFICES RECREATION GROUND,

Postcode DA S YD @R

Y

Telephone number: P
(incl. national dialling code)| ~ (5

g
\J

2 224 24b

Fax number:

W22
(incl. national dialling code)_ &L > £ 2

2215

I

~ 7

7

£

U

E-mail address:

Clerka)stoneporifhcCouncil:c

) /’f’““

o

3. Name and address of solicitor, if any

Name:

Firm:

Full postal address:

Post code

Telephone number:

(incl. national dialling code)

Fax number:
(incl. national dialling code)

E-mail address:

Page 7




Note 4

For further advice on
the criteria and
qualifying dates for
registration please see
section 4 of the
Guidance Notes.

* Section 15(6)
enables any period of
statutory closure
where access to the
land is denied to be
disregarded in
determining the 20
year period.

4. Basis of application for registration and qualifying criteria

If you are the landowner and are seeking voluntarily to register your land
please tick this box and move to question 5.

Application made under section 15(8): |/

If the application is made under section 15(1) of the Act, please tick one of
the following boxes to indicate which particular subsection and qualifying
criterion applies to the case.

Section 15(2) applies:

Section 15(3) applies:

Section 15(4) applies: |:|

If section 15(3) or (4) applies please indicate the date on which you consider
that use as of right ended.

If section 15(6)* applies please indicate the period of statutory closure (if
any) which needs to be disregarded.

Page 8




Note 5

The accompanying
map must be at a
scale of at least
1:2,500 and show the
land by distinctive
colouring to enable to
it to be clearly
identified.

* Only complete if the
land is already
registered as common
land.

Note 6

It may be possible to
indicate the locality of
the green by reference
to an administrative
area, such as a parish
or electoral ward, or
other area sufficiently
defined by name (such
as a village or street).
If this is not possible a
map should be
provided on which a
locality or
neighbourhood is
marked clearly.

5. Description and particulars of the area of land in respect of which
application for registration is made

Name by which usually known:

Thhe Crieet

Location:

~ ‘ 0 B Yy . R O
L oelaoye < 0ot (. S A-Aee K g A
/ /

(ooroloreol & Wy Tollgate R_o ;LLL>

Shown in colour on the map which is marked and attached to the statutory
declaration.

Common land register unit number (if relevant) *

6. Locality or neighbourhood within a locality in respect of which the
application is made

Please show the locality or neighbourhood within the locality to which the
claimed green relates, either by writing the administrative area or

geographical area by name below, or by attaching a map on which the area is

clearly marked:

' 8 L
/6 E orme A .Q&rLsM

Tick here if map attached:

Page 9




Note 7

Applicants should
provide a summary of
the case for
registration here and
enclose a separate full
statement and all other
evidence including any
witness statements in
support of the
application.

This information is not
needed if a landowner
is applying to register
the land as a green
under section 15(8).

7. Justification for application to register the land as a town or village
green

p /o £ o o AT { /\ ( D )
ijk\ Pp Ay WME/ iieler /AHLctll e LS4 ’

Page 10




Note 8
Please use a separate
sheet if necessary.

Where relevant include
reference to title
numbers in the register
of title held by the
Land Registry.

If no one has been
identified in this
section you should
write “none”

This information is not
needed if a landowner
is applying to register
the land as a green
under section 15(8).

Note 9

List all such
declarations that
accompany the
application. If none is
required, write “none”.

This information is not
needed if an
application is being
made to register the
land as a green under
section 15(1).

Note 10

List all supporting
documents and maps
accompanying the
application. If none,
write “none”

Please use a separate
sheet if necessary.

8. Name and address of every person whom the applicant believes to be
an owner, lessee, tenant or occupier of any part of the land claimed to
be a town or village green

'rl\ J ayal /L,L AA ’V'/ AL \f«;-*u‘;e/r A ec Coom (9 (%\)

F

9. Voluntary registration — declarations of consent from ‘relevant
leaseholder’, and of the proprietor of any ‘relevant charge’ over the land

10. Supporting documentation

?\ﬁ%\/ 0 C/’f’ A & *D/t/(, ( LA ,A’C;ﬁ/(~ RS D 4//1/,{,‘@*\/»@*1‘};’

}1&€%AJL@§F%11¢@{X et

S/

Page 11




11. Any other information relating to the application
Note 11

If there are any other
matters which should
be brought to the
attention of the
registration authority
(in particular if a
person interested in
the land is expected to
challenge the
application for
registration). Full
details should be given
here or on a separate
sheet if necessary.

Note 12 ——
The application must Date: <0 D L

be signed by each
individual applicant, or

by the authorised . .
officer of an applicant Signatures: I/ A
which is a body AN (A S Y
corporate or ' -
unincorporate.

REMINDER TO APPLICANT

You are advised to keep a copy of the application and all associated documentation.
Applicants should be aware that signature of the statutory declaration is a sworn statement
of truth in presenting the application and accompanying evidence. The making of a false
statement for the purposes of this application may render the maker liable to prosecution.

Data Protection Act 1998

The application and any representations made cannot be treated as confidential. To determine the
application it will be necessary for the registration authority to disclose information received from
you to others, which may include other local authorities, Government Departments, public bodies,
other organisations and members of the public.

Page 12




Statutory Declaration In Support

' Insert full name
(and address if not
given in the
application form).

2 Delete and adapt
as necessary.

3 Insert name if
Applicable

* Complete onlyin
the case of
voluntary
registration (strike
through if this is not
relevant)

To be made by the applicant, or by one of the applicants, or by his or
their solicitor, or, if the applicant is a body corporate or unincorporate,
by its solicitor, or by the person who signed the application.

L1CITIYY solemnly and sincerely declare as follows:—

1.2 1 am ((the person (one of the persons) who (has) (have) signed
the foregoing application)) ((the solicitor to (the applicant) (> one of the
applicants)).

2. The facts set out in the application form are to the best of my
knowledge and belief fully and truly stated and | am not aware of any
other fact which should be brought to the attention of the registration
authority as likely to affect its decision on this application, nor of any
document relating to the matter other than those (if any) mentioned in
parts 10 and 11 of the application.

3. The map now produced as part of this declaration is the map
referred to in part 5 of the application.

4.* | hereby apply under section 15(8) of the Commons Act 2006 to
register as a green the land indicated on the map and that is in my
ownership. | have provided the following necessary declarations of
consent:

(i) a declaration of ownership of the land;

(ii) a declaration that all necessary consents from the relevant
leaseholder or proprietor of any relevant charge over the land have

Cont/

Page 13




* Continued been received and are exhibited with this declaration; or
(iii) where no such consents are required, a declaration to that effect.

And | make this solemn declaration, conscientiously believing the
same to be true, and by virtue of the Statutory Declarations Act 1835.

Declared by the said )
cTonE PARISH - )

\ Cil FACES )

at ¢ N )
\{‘ )

O MN

e M )
o )

this )

Before me * —

Signature: . ' (\7 P KQ

aiess: 2 LPPER CHURCH HiLl
= N = 11/ A N /

iD‘F(:) é\‘ ol \ J / (:/ i é’/ln.ﬁ (—; - [‘: :
;é: == N H (7 /; [“/ Mt‘ N 7

Qualification: ~

- T .

~N QA S S 4
.,t) j \}‘ é’/ {} !Ej“‘ (_J/\\_,/"‘

* The statutory declaration must be made before a justice of the peace, practising

solicitor, commissioner for oaths or notary public.

Signature of the statutory declaration is a sworn statement of truth in presenting the
application and accompanying evidence.

REMINDER TO OFFICER TAKING DECLARATION:

Please initial all alterations and mark any map as an exhibit

Page 14




abuewd
1oatew

5

ansst jO 3lep aw woyj sAep gz jo porad e puoAaq Ol PasIajas aq 10u Pinoys ueid St

O = N 2
.

Z ane,

sweor ped 10 59dwex? oot

Lo papndul iUt 3y ‘smiesedde seb 1eau Jo Lo NoA Jo) BuIom (S101981U0D JO JNOQE|
) su ' adedspue JnojoD £y Lo .\ ,
ued RUDaW Aue 310§3q 311s UO sniesedde JaW0 PUe s P3N 00S © | 3(eIS 3lewx0Iddy v/9S0OL 'pSOvLL '86595S
. uonisod (enjoe aul cm__nm_mm pue woe wo ©30N3H3434 AIBE
suspJeo ulswe|y pue peoy a1ed||oL Aq paJaploq —Jud) ‘BU0IS ‘PeOoY UopuO] e palents ns&.ﬁs 4 60615 9156 vorsanuo ensas 10 Sabe s oosoeny | - ———
Aq paidanoe s1 13A20S1BYM puy ?m 10 A Ue 3q PINOYS 32U3S3IE YN ING | == — = — —mm SNIVH dHN 3SNOJS3Y YMSHN
UMOUS 10U 3JB D13 "SUOIDBUU0D QN}S 'SUOYJAS A13S “paaluesenb aq jouued - P . "
j0313Y) Adeindde aul ‘Aueiiem 1o ‘uonebiqo In d SI41 UO UMOYS LOHBULIOjU! - SN a1 £002/11/51 :31vQ
.C@QL@ wmm___> e se _UP_N_ %o CO_HNLHW_MQ._ WF_H ‘_O% CO_HNU__QQ< bt __UCZOU r_m:m& UCOHW 3y "SI3UMO BUl WOJ| PAUIRIQO 3Q PINOYS S3did YINS 01 P1EB3) LA:M UOHBWIOJU] "BAIR SIY) SNIYW ot 20wl a1 u3sr
- : : w1 uasaid aq Aew paumo Aja1eand os|e pue 19 130 AQ paumo sadid se ‘(1 9) sauodsue | —_— = SNIVW diW ) !
SE9 Pasuad e se 3jos i ur 21d 03sues ) AQ Paumo sadid asouy Ajuo smoys ueid sy SNIVW d1 005 : | :37¥DS

L \J/,N B

C*

- — — — QQ- *
—— — T g :
S ey 5
- TP~ N 4
— 0}S AnS 13 [ /,,/,w/
£/80Z0G ST T
/ ON

, 70

4 WD 4

y 4 abpon _”;

, — Vi U018




APPENDIX C:
Photographs showing application site

Above: View from London Road and Tollgate Road junction looking EAST

Below: View from Tollage Road and Alamein Gardens junction looking EAST

Page 16




Above: View from Alamein Gardens (adjacent to property number 129) looking WEST

Below: View from London Road (adjacent to 139 Alamein Gardens) looking WEST

Page 17



55 APPENDIX D:
Plan showing ownership of

application site
=
-
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
—
_
_
_
L -
// -
- -
- //
// -
_ ~
o -
// //
- -
- -
// //
- -
_ _
_
_ o
// -
// //
— m L
- . _
— //
——
o —
—_—— == —
—— — -
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
-
-
_

section owned by Stone Parish Council

L ,
\ [
| /
]
{ ,t (Land Registry Title number K430820)
/
l9
\
| O . \Y
] S~
N
| << T ———
' @ TTT==——_ .
- N o S _
/l :II e Section owned by Dartford Borough Council /# — — = =~~~
/ P (Land Registry Title number K893240) ALA G
L TCB — | ALAMEIN
/ -7 TTTm—= 7
\ 2
// \ Ve
1 \ /
/ ) //
{ Lo ! /
I = Cﬁ !
s1 / —— g
I I
E // %} / / %A‘ 2 §
N N / / =
/ ~ ! / A
/ / / 3L
/ / / 20
/ I / 18 6
/ /
/ / 1%
/ / 1 e}
/
/ I 12
/ / Q 0
O / / 1
/ / oo
/ !
556600

Section owned by
Stone Parish Council

" County

Council

Section owned by
Dartford Borough CounciIP

Scale 1:500




. APPENDIX E:
Land Regi‘StFU Register of title

Off : ﬁl Title number K430820 Edition date 24.01.2007
icial copy
Of re |Ster Of — This official copy shows the entries in the register of title on
g 18 November 2008 at 10:42:22.
. — This date must be quoted as the "search from date" in any
tltle official search application based on this copy.

— The date at the beginning of an entry is the date on which
the entry was made in the register.

— Issued on 18 November 2008.

— Under s.67 of the Land Registration Act 2002, this copy is
admissible in evidence to the same extent as the original.

— For information about the register of title see Land Registry
website www.landregistry.gov.uk or Land Registry Public
Guide 1 - A guide to the information we keep and how you
can obtain it.

— This title is dealt with by Land Registry Tunbridge Wells
Office.

A: Property register

This register describes the land and estate comprised in the title.

KENT : DARTFORD

1 (29.07.1975) The Freehold land shown edged with red on the plan of the
above Title filed at the Registry and being land on the south side of
London Road, Stone, Dartford.

B: Proprietorship register
This register specifies the class of title and identifies the owner. It contains any
entries that affect the right of disposal.

Title absolute

1 (24.01.2007) PROPRIETOR: STONE PARISH COUNCIL of Council Offices,
Recreation Ground, London Road, Stone, Greenhithe, Kent DA9 9DQ.

2 (24.01.2007) The price stated to have been paid on 5 January 2007 was £1.

3 (24.01.2007) RESTRICTION: No disposition of the registered estate by the
proprietor of the registered estate is to be registered without a
certificate signed on behalf of The Kent County Council of Sessions House,
County Hall, Maidstone, Kent MEl4 1XQ or its statutory successor by its
County Solicitor that the provisions of the first schedule of the Transfer
dated 5 January 2007 made between (1) The Kent County Council and (2) Stone
Parish Council have been complied with.

4 (24.01.2007) The Transfer to the proprietor contains a covenant to observe

and perform the covenants in the Deed Clause 3 dated 20 May 1979 referred
to in the Charges Register and of indemnity in respect thereof.

Page 19

e
0777033003




Title number K430820

C: Charges register

This register contains any charges and other matters that affect the land.

1 The part of the land affected thereby is subject to rights granted by a
Deed dated 20 May 1979 made between (1) The Kent County Council and (2)
British Gas Corporation. The said Deed also contains restrictive
covenants.

NOTE: Copy filed.

End of register

Page 20

Page 2



H. M. LaND REGISTRY |

NATIONAL GRID PLAN TQ 373 - szcTion C
KENT

DARTFORD DISTRICT  Scale 11250

STOME PARISH

TOLLGATE

| P

THE DBOUNDATILS SHEWN LY COTTED
LIRCS BAYE BEEM PLCTTED FROM THE
PLAXS CN  THE GLCCDS AND ARE
SUZJZST TO REVISION ON  SURVEY,

T Crown Copyright 1973 Zﬁ

TITLE MNo. K430

is official copy is issued, and shows the state of this title plan, on 18 November 2008 at 10:42:22.
is admissible in evidence to the same extent as the original (s.67 Land Registration Act 2002).

iis title plan shows the general position, not the exact line, of the boundaries.
ay not match measurements between the same points on the ground. See L.
s title is dealt with by Land Registry, Tunbridge Wells Office.

Crown Copyright. Produced by Land Registry. Reproduction in whole or in part is prohibited without the prior written permission of Ordnance Survey. Licence
imber 100026316.

It may be subject to distortions in scale. Measurements scaled from this plan
and Registry Public Guide 19 - Title Plans and Boundaries.

Page 21




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22



Agenda ltem 4

Application to register land at Beecholme Drive, Ashford
as a new Village Green

A report by the Director of Environment and Waste to Kent County Council’s
Regulation Committee Member Panel on Friday 7" August 2009.

Recommendation: | recommend that a non-statutory Public Inquiry be held into
the case to clarify the issues.

Local Members: Mrs. E. Tweed Unrestricted item

Introduction

1. The County Council has received an application to register land at Beecholme
Drive, Ashford as a new Village Green from local resident Mrs. P. Boorman (“the
applicant”). The application, dated 15" February 2008, was allocated the
application number VGA599. A plan of the site is shown at Appendix A to this
report and a copy of the application form is attached at Appendix B.

Procedure

2. The application has been made under section 15(1) of the Commons Act 2006
and regulation 3 of the Commons (Registration of Town or Village Greens)
(Interim Arrangements) (England) Regulations 2007. These regulations have,
since 1% October 2008, been superseded by the Commons Registration
(England) Regulations 2008 which apply only in relation to seven ‘pilot
implementation areas’ in England (of which Kent is one). The legal tests and
process for determining applications remain substantially the same.

3. Section 15(1) of the Commons Act 2006 enables any person to apply to a
Commons Registration Authority to register land as a Village Green where it can
be shown that:

‘a significant number of the inhabitants of any locality, or of any
neighbourhood within a locality, have indulged as of right in lawful
sports and pastimes on the land for a period of at least 20 years;

4. In addition to the above, the application must meet one of the following tests:
* Use of the land has continued ‘as of right' until at least the date of
application (section 15(2) of the Act); or
* Use of the land ‘as of right’ ended no more than two years prior to the
date of application, e.g. by way of the erection of fencing or a notice (section
15(3) of the Act); or
« Use of the land ‘as of right’ ended before 6™ April 2007 and the
application has been made within five years of the date the use ‘as of right’
ended (section 15(4) of the Act).

5. As a standard procedure set out in the regulations, the County Council must notify

the owners of the land, every local authority and any other known interested
persons. It must also publicise the application in a newspaper circulating in the

Page 23



local area and place a copy of the notice on the County Council’s website. In
addition, as a matter of best practice rather than legal requirement, the County
Council also places copies of the notice on site to provide local people with the
opportunity to comment on the application. The publicity must state a period of at
least six weeks during which objections and representations can be made.

The application site

6. The area of land subject to this application (“the application site”) is situated in the
Bybrook area of the town of Ashford. It is a roughly L-shaped site that is bounded
along it longest side (to the north-west) by Beecholme Drive, to the north-east by
Grasmere Road and on the remaining sides by the rear of properties in Bybrook
Road and Beecholme Drive, as shown on the plan at Appendix A.

7. The application site consists of a largely unenclosed grass open space and
includes a fenced children’s play area, as shown on the aerial photograph at
Appendix C.

The case

8. The application has been made on the grounds that the application site has
become a village green by virtue of the actual use of the land by the local
inhabitants for a range of recreational activities ‘as of right’ for well in excess of 20
years.

9. Included in the application were 10 user evidence questionnaires from local
residents demonstrating use of the application site over a period in excess of 20
years. A summary of the user evidence is attached at Appendix D.

10.Also submitted in support of the application are a number of photographs showing
the application site and use of it by local children, as well as a petition containing
approximately 330 signatures and a copy of a report by Ashford Borough
Council’'s Research and Development Manager concerning the proposed disposal
of the land to enable the development of 19 environmentally sustainable homes.

Consultations

11.Consultations have been carried out as required and the following comments
have been received.

12.The Kennington Community Forum wrote in support of the application. It
described the application site as a small parcel of land in a high density housing
estate that was used for informal recreation by local children for many years. The
Forum highlighted the fact that Bybrook has been identified in Ashford Borough
Council’s draft Open Space Strategy as having significant deprivation with regard
to open space provision, and expressed concern that the deprivation of open
space in the area may be contributing to an increase in anti-social behaviour in
the area.

13.The Campaign to Protect Rural England also wrote in support of the application
on the basis that the area in which the application site is situated has an

Page 24



acknowledged lack of public open space and the loss of the application site to
future development would have a detrimental impact on the local environment.

14.Three local residents also wrote in support of the application. They added their
own evidence of use and stated that the application site is well used by the local
children for playing games and by local dog-walkers. One objection was received
from a local resident on the basis that he did not consider that the land had been
used in the requisite manner (although this was received after the formal
consultation period had ended).

Landowner

15.The application site is owned by Ashford Borough Council. Mrs. S. Smith, of the
Council’'s Legal and Democratic Services, has objected to the application on the
Borough Council’s behalf.

16.The objection is made on the grounds that it is considered by the Borough
Council that the land is open space falling within the definition contained in
section 20 of the Open Spaces Act 1906: i.e. “land, whether inclosed or not, on
which there are no buildings... and the whole or remainder of which is laid out as
a garden or is used for the purposes of recreation...”. Thus, it is the Borough
Council’s contention that the application site is held by the Borough Council under
a statutory trust thus rendering use of the land by the local residents ‘by right’
(because, in the Borough Council’s view, they have the right to use it by virtue of
it being held as open space) and not ‘as of right’.

17.The Borough Council also helpfully sets out a brief history of the land and
explains that it was originally acquired by the Borough Council’s predecessor (the
Ashford Urban District Council) in 1962, with the majority of the site being
acquired under the provisions of the Housing Act 1957. The blocks of flats in
Bybrook Road were built in the mid-1960s with the development of Beecholme
Drive taking place in the early 1980s.

18.The objection is supported by a number of photographs showing the application
site and a copy of the Borough Council’'s Research and Development Manager’s
report dated 18™ October 2007 entitled ‘Disposal of land off Beecholme Drive,
Kennington to enable the development of an exemplar zero-carbon, mixed-tenure
housing scheme’ (also supplied by the applicant, see paragraph 10 above). The
report refers to only part of the application site; a section of 0.47 acres abutting
Beecholme Drive. It describes the application site as ‘poor grade open space’ and
‘a grassed area, which Housing Managers report is regularly used for dumping
rubbish and occasionally abandoned cars’. The report makes a recommendation
that the Executive agree the disposal of the land subject to (amongst other things)
obtaining the necessary consent from the Secretary of State under Section 32 of
the Housing Act 1985 for disposal of housing land and the consideration and
resolution of any objections received under the Open Spaces Act 1906.

19.At the time of writing this report, it was understood that although the necessary
consent from the Secretary of State had been obtained, the submission of the
planning application was on hold pending the outcome of the Village Green
application.

Page 25



Legal tests

20.In dealing with an application to register a new Village Green the County Council

must consider the following criteria:

(a) Whether use of the land has been ‘as of right'?

(b) Whether use of the land has been for the purposes of lawful sports and
pastimes?

(c) Whether use has been by a significant number of inhabitants of a particular
locality, neighbourhood or a neighbourhood within a locality?

(d) Whether use has taken place over period of twenty years or more?

(e) Whether use of the land ‘as of right’ by the inhabitants has continued up until
the date of application or meets one of the criteria set out in sections 15(3) or
15(4)?

| shall now take each of these points and elaborate on them individually:
(a) Whether use of the land has been ‘as of right'?

21.The definition of the phrase ‘as of right’ has been considered in recent High Court
case law. Following the judgement in the Sunningwell” case, it is now considered
that if a person uses the land for a required period of time without force, secrecy
or permission (nec vi, nec clam, nec precario), and the landowner does not stop
him or advertise the fact that he has no right to be there, then rights are acquired
and further use becomes ‘as of right’.

22.1n this case, there is no suggestion that the use of the application site by the local
residents took place by force or with secrecy. It is clear from a visit to the site that
it is not and does not appear to have ever been fenced off. Access is easily
achieved via the footways of Beecholme Drive and Grasmere Road.

23.There is, however, a question as to whether the use of the application site for
informal recreation has been by virtue of an implied permission. Where land is
held by a local authority, it is important to determine the powers under which that
authority originally acquired and now holds the land in order to establish whether
the use of the land by the local residents has been ‘as of right'.

24.1t is the Borough Council’'s contention that the land is held under the Open
Spaces Act 1906. Section 9 of this Act enables local authorities to acquire open
space. Section 10 provides that ‘a local authority who have acquired... any open
space... shall... hold and administer the open space... in trust to allow, and with a
view to, the enjoyment thereof by the public as an open space within the meaning
of this Act... [and] maintain and keep the open space... in a good a decent state’.
Section 15 allows the local authority to make byelaws to regulate the use of the
open space.

25.The effect of these provisions is that if land is held under the Open Spaces Act
1906, it is held under a public statutory trust and the public have a statutory right

" R v. Oxfordshire County Council, ex p. Sunningwell Parish Council [1999] 3 WLR 160

Page 26



to use the land for recreational purposes. Their use of the land is ‘by right’ rather
than ‘as of right’ and thus they cannot acquire a right which they already have.

26.This was confirmed in a House of Lords case known as Beresford?, in which Lord
Walker said “where land is vested in a local authority on a statutory trust under
section 10 of the Open Spaces Act 1906, inhabitants of the locality are
beneficiaries of a statutory trust of a public nature, and it would be very difficult to
regard those who use the park or other open space as trespassers... the position
would be the same if there were no statutory trust in the strictest sense, but land
had been appropriated for the purpose of public recreation’.

27.Despite the Borough Council’s position, there is evidence to suggest that the land
is not held under the Open Spaces Act 1906. It cannot be disputed that the land
does fall within the definition of ‘open space’ referred to in paragraph 16 above.
This definition, however, could apply to any piece of land and to say that land is
formally held as open space simply on the basis of this definition (in the absence
of any evidence of a formal appropriation as open space) is too simplistic.

28.The assertion that the land is formally held as public open space is also in direct
contrast with the fact that the land was acquired under the Housing Act 1957 and
that the Borough Council has found it necessary to seek consent from the
Secretary of State under section 32 of the Housing Act 1985 for the disposal of
‘housing land’ in relation to the proposed development of part of the application
site.

29.In the Beresford case, Lord Scott commented that “it would be, in my view, an
arguable proposition that if the current use of land acquired by a local authority
were use for the purposes of recreation and if the land had not been purchased
for some other inconsistent use and the local authority had the intention
that the land should continue to be used for the purposes of recreation, the
provisions of section 10 [of the Open Spaces Act 1906] would apply” (emphasis
added in bold)®. Hence, it could be argued that the acquisition of land for housing
purposes is not consistent with the land being held as a public open space and
therefore the provisions of section 10 of the Open Spaces Act 1910 do not apply.
This being the case, then it can be concluded that use of the application site is
likely to have been ‘as of right’.

(b) Whether use of the land has been for the purposes of lawful sports and
pastimes?

30.Legal principle does not require that recreational activities of this nature be limited
to certain ancient pastimes (such as maypole dancing); indeed, ‘dog walking and
playing with children are, in modern life, the kind of informal recreation which may
be the main function of a village green*.

31.In this case, the evidence demonstrates that a range of recreational activities
have taken place on the land, including dog-walking and training, nature-watching
and playing with children. The table summarising evidence of use by local

2 R(Beresford) v Sunderland City Council [2003] UKHL 60 at paragraph 87 (Lord Rodger)
3 R(Beresford) v Sunderland City Council [2003] UKHL 60 at paragraph 30
* R v Suffolk County Council ex parte Steed (1995) 70 P&CR 487 at page 503

Page 27



residents at Appendix D shows the full range of activities claimed to have taken
place.

32.Reference is also made to community events, and in particular annual bonfire and
fireworks celebrations. However, it is not clear as to whether this has taken place
over the whole of the requisite 20 year period or whether any special permission
was ever sought from the Borough Council regarding this event.

(c) Whether use has been by a significant number of inhabitants of a particular
locality or a neighbourhood within a locality?

33.The right to use a Village Green is restricted to the inhabitants of a locality or of a
neighbourhood within a locality and it is therefore important to be able to define
this area with a degree of accuracy so that the group of people to whom the
recreational rights are attached can be identified. Identifying the relevant “locality”
or “neighbourhood within a locality” can be problematic but it does not matter if
the applicant fails to precisely defined the correct locality in his application; the
burden is not on the applicant to establish the correct locality at the time of
application, but rather on the Registration Authority to satisfy itself that there is a
relevant locality (or neighbourhood) at the time of registration®.

“locality”

34.The definition of locality for the purposes of a village green application has been
the subject of much debate in the courts and there is still no definite rule to be
applied. In the Cheltenham Builders® case, it was considered that “...at the very
least, Parliament required the users of the land to be the inhabitants of
somewhere that could sensibly be described as a locality... there has to be, in my
Jjudgement, a sufficiently cohesive entity which is capable of definition’. The judge
later went on to suggest that this might mean that locality should normally
constitute ‘some legally recognised administrative division of the county’.

35.At part 6 of the application form, the applicant specifies the locality as ‘Bybrook
ward and Bockhanger’. As shown on the plan at Appendix E, the application site
is situated on the boundary of the two Borough Council wards, with some users
residing in Bybrook ward and some residing in Bockhanger ward. Although it has
been argued that, on a strict interpretation of section 15, ‘locality’ means a single
administrative unit’, in the Oxfordshire case, Lord Hoffman said this: ‘The fact that
the word “locality” when it first appears... must mean a single locality is no reason
why the context of “neighbourhood within a locality” should not lead to the
conclusion that it means “within a locality or localities”®.

36. Alternatively, it has also been held by the Courts that an ecclesiastical parish
could form a recognised locality since they are known to the law and have defined

° Oxfordshire County Council v Oxford City Council [2006] 4 All ER 817

°R (Cheltenham Builders Ltd.) v South Gloucestershire District Council [2004] 1 EGLR 85 at page 90
" R (Cheltenham Builders Ltd.) v South Gloucestershire District Council [2004] 1 EGLR 85

% Oxfordshire County Council v Oxford City Council [2006] 4 All ER 817 at page 830

Page 28



boundaries®. The application site falls within the ecclesiastical parish of St Mary’s
Kennington and it could be that this would form the relevant locality in this case.

“a significant number”

37.The word “significant” in this context does not mean considerable or substantial:
‘a neighbourhood may have a very limited population and a significant number of
the inhabitants of such a neighbourhood might not be so great as to properly be
described as a considerable or a substantial number... what matters is that the
number of people using the land in question has to be sufficient to indicate that
the land is in general use by the community for informal recreation rather than
occasional use by individuals as trespassers’'®. Thus, what is a ‘significant
number will depend upon the local environment and will vary in each case
depending upon the location of the application site.

38.1In this case, the application has been accompanied by 10 user evidence forms
from local residents. Taking the combined Bybrook and Bockhanger Borough
Council wards as the “locality”, it could be argued that use by 10 people out of an
urban population of approximately 5100'" does not represent a ‘significant
number’ to demonstrate that the land was in general use by local residents.
However, it is recognised that those completing the forms provide only a
representative sample and it is also important to note that a petition containing
approximately 330 names has also been submitted in support of the application. If
those signing the petition are also using the application site, then this may be
sufficient to satisfy the ‘significant number’ test.

39.In cases where the “locality” is so large that it is difficult to show that the
application site has been used by a significant number of people from that locality
(as is the case here), it will be necessary to consider whether there is a relevant
“neighbourhood” within the wider locality.

‘neighbourhood within a locality”

40.0n the subject of neighbourhood, the Courts have held that ‘it is common ground
that a neighbourhood need not be a recognised administrative unit. A housing
estate might well be described in ordinary language as a neighbourhood... The
Registration Authority has to be satisfied that the area alleged to be a
neighbourhood has a sufficient degree of cohesiveness; otherwise the word
“neighbourhood” would be stripped of any real meaning *2.

41.In this case, it is difficult to identify the relevant neighbourhood as this is a very
subjective concept (given that it need not be a recognised administrative unit) and
one which is best identified by those who live in the area.

42.Given the proposed recommendation, it is not necessary to conclude on this issue
as this is a point which could easily be clarified at a Public Inquiry and the exact
“neighbourhood within a locality” would become clear during the course of hearing

°R (Laing Homes Ltd.) v Buckinghamshire County Council [2003] 3 EGLR 70

YR (Alfred McAlipne Homes Ltd.) v Staffordshire County Council [2002] EWHC 76 at paragraph 71

" As at the 2001 census

2R (Cheltenham Builders Ltd.) v South Gloucestershire District Council [2004] 1 EGLR 85 at page 92

Page 29



the witness evidence. It is evident that there is a defined locality (be that the
combined Borough Council wards of Bybrook and Bockhanger or the
ecclesiastical parish of St. Mary’s, Kennington) but there is a question as to
whether there is a need to establish a sufficiently ‘distinct and identifiable
community’ that would form a neighbourhood. This latter point requires further
clarification.

43.1In relation to the ‘significant number’ test, the evidence as currently produced is
unlikely to be sufficient to meet this test given that the application site is located in
an urban area. However, there is evidence from the petition that the application
site is potentially used by a far greater number of people who have not provided
evidence of use in relation to the application site. A Public Inquiry would allow this
evidence to be heard and a more informed conclusion to be reached with regard
to whether the land has been used by a ‘significant number’ of local residents.

(d) Whether use has taken place over period of twenty years or more?

44.In order to qualify for registration, it must be shown that the land in question has
been used for a full period of twenty years up until the date of application. In this
case, the application was submitted in 2008 and therefore the relevant twenty-
year period (“the material period”) is 1988 to 2008.

45.From the user evidence submitted, there appears to have been use of the land
over a considerable period dating back far beyond 1988. Four of the witnesses
have used the land for over 20 years, with some use dating back to the early
1970s. In addition, all of the users state in their questionnaires that they have
witnessed other people using the land for a range of recreational activities.

(e) Whether use of the land by the inhabitants is continuing up until the date of
application?

46.The Commons Act 2006 introduces a number of transitional arrangements
regarding the actual use of the land in relation to the making of the application to
register it as a Village Green. These are set out at paragraph 4 above.

47.In this case, there is no suggestion that the use of the land has ceased prior to
the making of the application. The application appears to have been prompted by
concerns regarding the future development of the site rather than any recent
attempts to deny access to the site. The open nature of the site means that
people need only step onto the application site from a public highway without
meeting any barriers or obstructions. The only way in which access could be
prevented is to fence the site in its entirety: no mention is made of this ever
having happened by any of the withesses and there is no evidence of the remains
of any fencing visible on the site itself.

48. Therefore, it appears that use of the land has continued up until the date of

application and as such it is not necessary to consider the other tests set out in
sections 15(3) and 15(4) of the Act.

Page 30



Conclusion

49. Although the relevant regulations' provide a framework for the initial stages of

processing the application (e.g. advertising the application, dealing with
objections etc), they provide little guidance with regard to the procedure that a
Commons Registration Authority should follow in considering and determining the
application. In recent times it has become relatively commonplace, in cases which
are particularly emotive of where the application turns on disputed issues of fact,
for Registration Authorities to conduct a non-statutory Public Inquiry. This involves
appointing an independent Inspector to hear the relevant evidence and report
his/her findings back to the Registration Authority.

50.Such an approach has received positive approval by the Courts, most notably in

51.

the Whitmey'* case in which Waller LJ said this: ‘the registration authority has to
consider both the interests of the landowner and the possible interest of the local
inhabitants. That means that there should not be any presumption in favour of
registration or any presumption against registration. It will mean that, in any case
where there is a serious dispute, a registration authority will almost invariably
need to appoint an independent expert to hold a public inquiry, and find the
requisite facts, in order to obtain the proper advice before registration’.

It is important to remember, as was famously quoted by the judge in another High
Court case', that ‘it is no trivial matter for a landowner to have land, whether in
public or private ownership, registered as a town green... [the relevant legal tests]
must be ‘properly and strictly proved’. This means that it is of paramount
importance for a Registration Authority to ensure that, before taking a decision, it
has all of the relevant facts available upon which to base a sound decision. It
should be recalled that the only means of appeal against the Registration
Authority’s decision is by way of a Judicial Review in the High Court.

52.1n this case, there are a number or grey areas which require further clarification, in

particular the relevant neighbourhood and establishing whether a ‘significant
number’ of the local residents have used the land. Although it can be said that
there are no major deficiencies in the evidence or any significant knock-out blows
presented by the objector so as to recommend complete rejection of the
application, the evidence (as currently available) is not sufficient to warrant the
registration of the land as a Village Green.

53.A Public Inquiry would allow witnesses to give more detailed evidence that could

be subject to relevant questions from the Inspector. This would provide a greater
clarity to the user evidence than is currently available in paper form and enable
the Registration Authority to come to a more informed decision on the case.

Recommendations

54.1 therefore recommend that a non-statutory Public Inquiry be held into the case to

clarify the issues.

' Commons Registration (England) Regulations 2008
* R (Whitmey) v Commons Commissioners [2004] EWCA Civ 951 at paragraph 66
"® R v Suffolk County Council, ex parte Steed [1997] 1EGLR 131 at page 134

Page 31



Accountable Officer:

Dr. Linda Davies — Tel: 01622 221500 or Email: linda.davies@kent.gov.uk

Case Officer:

Miss. Melanie McNeir — Tel: 01622 221511 or Email: melanie.mcneir@kent.gov.uk

The main file is available for viewing on request at the Environment and Waste
Division, Environment and Regeneration Directorate, Invicta House, County Hall,
Maidstone. Please contact the case officer for further details.

Background documents

APPENDIX A — Plan showing application site

APPENDIX B — Copy of application form

APPENDIX C — Aerial photograph showing the application site
APPENDIX D — Table summarising user evidence

APPENDIX E - Plan showing the locality within which users reside

Page 32




144600

144500

144400

601300

Rivendell

Twin Oaks

APPENDIX A:

Plan showing application site

; 230
to
:’/ 250
&
A
228 v
~ A
>, o
a4 /
(‘ s // Comi]
N O A5 4
NN NI 11/// 2,
[ > 4
S
] f
i ']/~ Bockhanger Hall
L/ )

/~ Community Centre \

601300

601400

144500

144400

Scale 1:1250

Land subject to Village Green
application at Beecholme Drive,
Bybrook, near Ashford

Council




APPENDIX B:
Copy of the application form

FORM 44
Commons Act 2006 Section 15

Application for the registration of land as a ”E’@wn or
Village Green

Official stamp of registration authority

indicating valid date of receipt: Application number: | 599

COMMONS ACT 2008 . - .
KENT COUNTY GCOUNGIL Register unit No(s).
REGISTRATION AUTHORITY
14 MAR 2008 . | VG number allocated at registration:

(CRA to complete only if application is successful)

Apphcants are advised to read the ‘Gmdance Notes for the completion of an Application for the Registration of
tand as a Town or Village Green’ and to note the following:

¢ Al applicants should complete questions 1-6 and 10-11.

. © Applicants applying for registration under section 15(1) of the 2006 Act should, in addition, complete questions 7-8.
Section 15(1) enables any persan to apply to register land as a green where the criteria for registratlon in section

15(2), (3) or (4) apply. .

¢ Applicants applying for voluntary registration under section 15(8) should, in addition, complete question 9.

1. Registration Authority

Note 1 To the

Ihsert name of - ~ -
registration _ RE W T Coady \{ CoanCi
authority.

INVICT e Wouwle
C e el R
A E (o NE .
' Me (4 ) A

Page 34




Note 2

If there is more than
one applicant, list all
names. Please use a
separate sheet if
necessary. State the
full title of the
organisation if a bady
corporate or
unincorporate.

If question 3 is not
complsted all
correspondence and
notices will be sent to
the first named
applicant,

Note 3

This question should
be compieted if a
soficitor fs instructed
for the purposes of the
application. If so alf
correspondence and
noftices will be sent to
the person or firm
named here.

2. Name and address of the applicant

Name: NS

@m"\‘@;\é\tm Do akma N

Full postal address:

[ & & MY tooyv RooD

Y€ v e o
AN Gl A

Postcode 7%, 5y s s

Telephone number:
(incl. national dialling code)

Fax number:

(incl. national dialling code)

E-mail address:

3. Name and address of solicitor, if any

O VRS

Name:

Firm:

Full postal address:

Post code

Telephone number:

(incl. national dialiing code)

Fax number:

{incl. naticnal dialiing cods)

E-mail address:

Page 35




Note 4 _
For further advice on
the criteria and
qualifying dates for
registraiion please see
section 4 of the
Guidance Nofes,

* Section 15(6)
enables any period of
statutory closure
where access fo the
fand is denied to be
disregarded in
determining the 20
year period.

4. Basis of application for registration and qualifying criteria

If you are the landowner and are seeking voluntarily to register your fand
please tick this box and move to question 5.

Application made under section 15(8): D

If the application is made under section 15(1) of the Act, please tick one of
the following boxes to indicate which particular subsection and qualifying
criterion applies to the case. _ g

Section 15(2) applies:
Section 15(3) applies: D
Section 15(4) applies: D

If section 15(3) or (4) applies please indicate the date on which you consider
that use as of right ended.

If section 15(6)* applies please indicate the period of statutory closure (if
any) which needs to be disregarded.

Page 36




Note 5

The accompanying
map must be at a
scale of af least
1:2,500 and show the
land by distinctive
colouring fo enable fo
it to be clearly
identiffed.

* Only complete if the
fand is already
registered as common
land.

Note 6

it may be possible to
indicate the locality of
the green by reference
to an administrative
area, such as a parish
or electoral ward, or
other area sufficiently
defined by name (such
as a village or street).
If this is not possible a
map should be
provided on which a
locality or
neighbourhood is
marked clearly.

5. Description and particulars of the area of land in respect of which
application for registration is made

Name by which usually known:

SR ('”Ul Caodl o@. of BECOISLM e —:Délzlf‘*cﬁ
wnd CARSMERE
Location:
Berew oime DAV E,
BB Lo o\,

HenulaeTon, ASWTodd, ¥adTT “To du

Shown in colour on the map which is marked and attached to the statutory
declaration.

Common land register unit number (if relevant) *

6. Locality or néighbqurhood within a locality in respéct of which the
application is made

Please show the locality or neighbourhood within the locality to which the
claimed green relates, either by writing the administrative area or ‘
geographical area by name below, or by attaching a map on which the area is
clearly marked:

BY BlRoak. wagD : ,

A Boatwang el

Tick here if map attached:

Page 37




Nofe 7

Applicants should
provide a summary of
the case for
registration here and
enclose a separate full
statement and all other
evidence including any
witness statements in
support of the
application.

This information is not

needed if a landowner
-is applying fo register
.the land as a green

under section 15(8).

7. Justification for appilication to register the land as a town or village
green

Po R Lemd Pvf\o Vegm weasd, &@r Wz Q0 aval
L O RW,%M}%\W .

P ud veses  Lalase BT Uy o o :

B X e o

e Ciliend g oS S Qand | Wl e bpace

%%\*Wt W_W@wxm@m

M@w\& M)R&.j > LuX el el e o de,. H
A . 3 : Il b § L .
VIR i e G e i, v

Sy e

Page 38




Note 8
Please use a separaie
sheet if necessary.

Where relevant include
reference fo fitle
numbers in the register
of title held by the
Land Registry.

If no one has been
identified in this
section you should
write “none”

This information is not
needed if a landowner’
is applying to register
the land as a green
under section 15(8).

Note 9

List afl such
declarations that
accompany the
application. If none is
required, write “none”.

This information is not
needed if an
application is being
made fo register the
land as a green under
section 15(1).

Note 10 )

List alf supporting
dociiments and maps
accompanying the
application. If none,
write “none”

Please use a separafe
sheet if necessary.

8. Name and address of every person whom the applicant believes to be
an owner, lessee, tenant or occcupier of any part of the land claimed fo
be a town or village green

-

- o i

BN ToeD
.}“’:\E;H T

T as VP L

9. Voluntary registration — declarations of consent from ‘relevant
leascholder’, and of the proprietor of any ‘relevant charge’ over the land

10. Supporting documentation

S Pam Sewl VHARES

?—\m pQ“‘V\ ? 5 %
M‘ﬁ_ﬁg_ Y"\ﬁ\{(ﬂ ““(‘N S

Page 39




11. Any other information relating to the application

Note 71
If there are any other

1
matters which should Q\% %o@c—wﬁe Couuwne S

be brought to the

attention of the . . )
registration authority \éfkgih- \ésm—wv:\
{in particular if a -
person interested in - g ~ ;
the land is expected o See wfan oo 7
challenge the

application for
registration). Full
detalls shouid be given
here or on a separale
sheet if necessary.

Note 12 : = .
The application must Date: s FM ooy
be signed by each NG

individual applicant, or .

by the authorised .
officer of an applicant Signatures: P& /Ba—m‘wmr\
which is & body
corporate or
unincorporats.

REMINDER TO APPLICANT

You are advised to keep a copy of the application and ail associated documentation.
Applicants should be aware that signature of the statutory declaration is a swomn statement
of truth in presenting the application and accompanying evidence. The making of a false
statement for the purposes of this application may render the maker liable fo prosecution.

Data Protection Act 1998

The application and any representations made cannot be treated as confidential. To determine the '
application it will be necessary for the registration authority to disclose information received from
you to others, which may include other local authorities, Government Departments, public bodies,
other organisations and members of the public.




Statutory Declaration In Support

' Insert full name
(and address if not
given in the
application form).

? Delete and adapt
as necessary.

® Insert name if
Applicable

* Complste only in
the case of
voluntary
registration (strike
through if this is not
relevant)

To be made by the applicant, or by one of the applicants, or by his or
their solicitor, or, if the applicant is a body corporate or unincorporate,
by its solicitor, or by the person Who signed the application.

solemnly and sincerely declare as follows:—

1.2 | am ({the person tore-ofthe-persons) who (has) thave) signed
the foregoing application))-t{the-seficier te (the-applicant) (* ore-cfthe
applieants)).

2, The facts set out in the application form are to the best of my
knowledge and belief fully and truly stated and | am not aware of any
other fact which should be brought to the attention ¢f the registration
authority as likely to affect its decision on this application, nor of any
document relating to the matter other than those (if any) mentioned in
parts 10 and 11 of the application.

3. The map now produced as part of this declaration is the map
referred to in part 5 of the application.

H

Nereby apply undersection 15(8) of the Cogmmons Act 2006 to
register &s.a green the land Mdicated on the nggﬂd\tl’qat is in my
ownership. I\haye provided the following necessary dec arations of
consent: ™~ :

"\\ ’ ™

(i) a deelaration of ownership oPthe land:

(iYa dec%raijon that all necessary ¢ogsents from the réfevant
leaseholder oF\p\roprietor of any relevanitcharge over the land have

Cont/




1 Continued been reveived and are exhibitethwith this deslaration; or
{iii) whe‘::}tt@_uch consents are re ired, a destaration to that effect.

And | make this solemn declaration, conscientiously believing the
, same to be true, and by virtue of the Statutory Declarations Act 1835.

Declared by the said
er—\ﬁ\"l\ C\\‘& A @DQQNAN ;

Q&M

Signature of Declarant

2

)
)
%
at S N\n.s:_j@:\ : )
)
| )

L 18% - )
this ‘ day of “Irm,%g\ma—)

Before me * Eicﬁ(ff\ﬂb kﬂ\hﬁf)( ~Ta({~%'7m\l
T%TME o THE pﬁr’tc:%'

Address: (k. Wene Hw«g(j{f ﬁ{ﬁ gfIZEé‘*/f f~/,4z:zuﬂ>
Sre7ne BoorwiE, Wemr MET L TC.

Qualification: j?;«;flarg o F THE ﬁbﬂﬂ LE

* The statutory declaration must be made before a justice of the peace, practising
solicitor, commissioner for oaths or notary public.

Signature of the statutory declaration is a sworn statement of truth in presenting the
appiication and accompanying evidence.

REMINDER TO OFFICER TAKING DECLARATION:

Piease initial all afterations and mark any map as an exhibit

Page 42




Bybrook Environmental
Project
A% _
A ..m.. ,&ﬁ\h.(nw{
=P SO “or S
0 0 ST o, Ty 1)
. [ i
Co et B

I R

‘ \m., .
Bockhanger p . m.n. "..",... .,,.m. I.\v\ fl..l.....t _U/\é\ fz.i;l)
Communlity g ) : K ¢ 5
Mty o -t &AL (ap)

4 v E

M . . L
fpeerevie zy E - ,,,.AMMJ 7
bl b e ©
B N v f......_..xl,‘nrw\iDl
(\n.l\\l. [N o 6 ﬂ.w:..\lﬂ-\.\l._ 3
Tﬁ«[wwlzv\/;. e Puaoean

QO Ve
KCG Primary 3 1 R
& Junlor - \ - . " . : . )
Sehoals i o W % p Estate: —
@ Lower estate

area 1.22ha

@ Upper estate

area 0.72ha

Modification

Project

Bybrock Environmental Project,
Bybrook Road,
Kennington

Drawing

She Flan
Site Pian Scale: 1:1250 @A3 _ —

FOOTPATHS THROUGH THE SITE




Appendix C:
Aerial photograph showing the
application site (dated 2003)

144500 000000

[=3
o
<
<
<
-

— 601400 °




APPENDIX D

dence

ISing user evi

Table summar

"suolelqs|eo

age 45

JyBiu aiyuoq Buipnjoul ‘seniAloe Jo (siesh o1) 9y
abuel e 10} pasn usaq sey pue| ay| ‘SUON Apjoam ao1m | uaJp|iyo yum buikeld | 800Z — 8661 ‘N CSIN
"Jawwins
ayj ul 9p3sed Aounoq e pue aoe|d aye) yoom
saweb ||eqiooy} AJlunwwod Jejnbay ‘ssaooe | Jad sewl) |BJOASS ualp|iyo (sieah z1) luemsad
apadwi 0} sebpay Jo sallepunoq ou — SUON — Aueinbay yum Buikeld ‘Buisijeroos bupjiepn | 8002 — 9661 ‘a sin
‘BuljoAo ‘BuiAjy ey ‘Bunjoiuoid
‘saweb wea) ‘syJomauly Buipnjoul yled ay) 0] uaip|iyo (steah ) welQ
‘saniAoe Jo abuel e 1o) pasn S| pueT "SUON Aleq Buye) ‘|leqiooy buiAeld ‘Bop Bupjiepr | 8002 — 1002 9 'sSIN
"ybiu aayjuoq 1o} pue gnjo Jajuim ul Buljjegmous ‘[lequoo) | (sieah zg) UOSLLIOI
|leq)ooy [edo| 8y} Ag pasn s| pue| 8y “dUON Aireq Buiyoyem ‘Buisijeroos ‘) ssoloe Bujlepn | 8002 — 9861 ERL
‘BuiAe|d ||eqi00) pue bupjiem ualp|iyo yum buiAed (s1eah gy) 19AOH "SI
Bop 1o} pasn Buiaq pue| a8y} meg "SUON Areqg pue sdoys 0} 106 0} ssolioe Bujiepn | 8002 — 0961 pue "I\
Aued
allJuog [enuue UE 10} pasn os|e S| pue| ay | oagsuy | (sieah g|) UIMpPOO9)
‘14O paoUd} UBa(Q JOASBU SBY pue| 8y} — SUON | Syjuow Jawwng ‘lleqiooy ‘buloAo ‘ualpiyo yym buikeld | 8002 — €661 ‘N SN
"SaljIAI0. J18Y)0 pue saweb ‘||eqioo; (s1eah g)
10} pasn Bulaq pue| 8y} USaS 9ABH "9UON Ajjeuoisess ssoJoe Bupnjiepr | 8002 — £00Z | 4ead "H N
"SallIAloe Jo abuel e sbuigis yum buike|d ‘sied j04uod (sieak ¢1) UIA|0D
1o} pue| a1 Buisn ajdoad Jayjo mesg "SUON Ajleqg ajowal Buisn ‘esiolaxa ‘|eqiool bulkeld | 800Z — S661 ‘aIN
spgg pue soiudid ‘Buloho ‘BulAly [leqioo} Aed
3]y ‘|1eqj00;} ‘syiomadly Buipnjoul SaijIAlOe sJayjo Buiyojem ‘1sjuim Ui uswmous | (sseah 2¢) UIA|0D
Joj puej 8y} Buisn sjdoad Jayjo meg "SUON Aire@ Buipiing ‘ualpjiyo yum Buikeld ‘Buiepr | 8002 — L26L ‘d "SIN
"JOQUIBAON
»,G U0 alyuoq pue saweb |leqjoo} Buipnjoul
‘siseq Jejnbal e uo saljiAloe jo abuel e eale Ae|d 0] uaip|iyo Buiye) ‘e)eisa (steah L) uewoog
1o} pue| a8y Buisn ajdoad Jayjo meg "SUON Apjoam ao1m | ay) Jo sued Jayio 0] ssolo 0] Bujiepn | 8002 — 2861 ‘d "SIN
SIN3NINOD ¥3HLO ANV 3SN asn 40 asn 40
Ol SIN3YY313IA /STONITTVHO AONINOIYL S3ILIALLDY aoly3ad 3JINVN




-m |mv D709 _ Hﬁ,c%%o_oomow 000000000209 000000000109 000000000669
<2 7 " T
S /K 07
3 S : SN S
© \ -
So : 8
= o
nnw ® g S
8 : {
X e /%
=2 d 049 Y207 M. F
90 | i
o9 (S
m T
. D&
w-= o
x 3.2
2 o=
Tcw®
S nT
et -
ph w ‘ AN/ m
<o o ¢ :@wuvwﬂa pues) TR m
g f / o.w N . ,:au._n>l>/.,, w
- &S
—vio3 SR fonsin
o 8ue
ﬂ w_mﬁ_n_m._._
W: ! %v z &
o /2 m
R N 2
P NN
H e Ak K PP m‘_v;uso..u\\‘
: v ,;, AN Na .ﬂ..\,»/r./ y \
. ¢ ) y s PuBSBUIY /59 4
G e N\ RV A LA
“~ayorsuiuuay ) [ s SIWA 2,
wieg , f waeg Ao NN \
N uo1BuiIWIpA £ , , N H i
% J Qm,i,-,..-.-A!ﬁ----- ) TN, /.— I.Vr
3 -V &x/ // /m‘rA X : ,., . g
o e & i ¥ - ) p=3
> “rnnasd ,\ ‘ \ [ v F— It o
S g &l 4 //f / ) _ H fl!f»/ S
) H\/ ; N
\ \ 2 .ﬂ? se8e1100) \ =
N F——34n0D yseN | /f
agpon & U ww._w>> __k T~
000000 000€09 00000209 000000000109 200000000009 000000 00066G




	Agenda
	3 Application to register land at Alamein Gardens, Stone as a new Village Green
	4 Application to register land at Beecholme Drive, Ashford as a new Village Green.

